
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Gretchen Kostelny, President Ana Espinoza, Vice President 
Zachary Taylor, Treasurer       Claire Clark, Secretary 
Janel King, Commissioner 

Berwyn Park District 
Board Meeting 

Proksa Park Activity Center  
3001 S. Wisconsin Ave, Berwyn, IL 

June 17, 2025, at 6:00pm 
Agenda 

I. Call to Order – Roll Call of Commissioners (action)  
II. Adoption of Agenda             (action) 

III. Presentation of Proksa Pond repairs
IV. Acceptance of Minutes (action) 

a. May 20th, 2025, Board Meeting
b. June 3rd, 2025, Committee Meeting

V. Public Comments
VI. Correspondence

VII. Financial Report
a. Superintendent of Finance & HR Report (action) 

VIII. Agency Report
IX. West Suburban Special Recreation Association (WSSRA)
X. Proksa Redevelopment

XI. Unfinished Business
XII. New Business

XIII. Commissioners’ Comments
XIV. Executive Session

a. The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific employees.
b. The purchase or lease of real property for the use of the public body, including meetings held for the purpose

of discussing whether a particular parcel should be acquired.
c. Discussion of minutes of meetings lawfully closed under this Act, whether for purposes of approval by the

body of the minutes or semi-annual review of the minutes as mandated by Section 2.06
d. Litigation, when an action against, affecting or on behalf of the particular public body has been filed and is

pending before a court or administrative tribunal, or when the public body finds that an action is probable or
imminent, in which case the basis for the finding shall be recorded and entered into the minutes of the closed
meeting.

XV. Action from Executive Session            (action) 
XVI. Adjournment            (action) 

The next regular scheduled meeting of the Board of Commissioners is July 15, 2025, at 6:00pm at Proksa Park 
Activity Center.  
The next Committee meeting of the Board of Commissioners is July 1, 2025, at 4:30pm at Freedom Park 
Administration Building.  
Persons with disabilities requiring reasonable accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact Director 
Fallon at 708-788-1701, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 



 Minutes of Monthly Board Meeting  
Berwyn Park District 

May 20, 2025, at 6pm 
Proksa Park Activity Center 

 
The regular monthly meeting of the Berwyn Park District Board of Commissioners was called to order at 
6:00pm by President Brock. 
Commissioners in attendance: Brian Brock, Ana Espinoza, Gretchen Kostelny, Mario Manfredini, and 
Zachary Taylor.  
Newly elected commissioners in attendance: Claire Clark and Janel King. 
Staff in attendance: Cathy Fallon (Executive Director), and Cindy Hayes (Superintendent of Finance and 
HR)  
 
Agenda: A motion made by Manfredini seconded by Kostelny to approve the agenda as presented. 
Motion approved. 
 
Minutes: A motion made by Espinoza, seconded by Manfredini to approve the minutes from April 15, 
2025, Board Meeting and May 6, 2025 Committee Meeting. Motion carried. 
 
Swearing in of New Officers: Claire Clark and Janel King took the oath of office. 
 
Election of Commissioners Positions: A motion was made by Taylor, seconded by Espinoza to elect 
Kostelny as board president. Roll call: Clark- aye, Espinoza- aye, King-aye, Kostelny-aye, and Taylor- aye. 
Motion carried. A motion was made by Taylor, seconded by Kostelny to elect Espinoza as vice president. 
Roll call: Clark- aye, Espinoza- aye, King-aye, Kostelny-aye, and Taylor- aye. Motion carried. A motion 
was made by Kostelny, seconded by Espinoza to elect Taylor as treasurer. Roll call: Clark- aye, Espinoza- 
aye, King-aye, Kostelny-aye, and Taylor- aye. Motion carried. A motion was made by King, seconded by 
Taylor to elect Clark as secretary. Roll call: Clark- aye, Espinoza- aye, King-aye, Kostelny-aye, and Taylor- 
aye. Motion carried. 
Gretchen Kostelny took over as board president. 
 
Public Comments: Andrew Sullivan loves having dogs in the park and loves frisbee golf. He expressed 
concerns of the homeless people in Proksa Park. The first time he called the police; they came and 
moved the people out of the park. The next time he called the police, they never came. He witnessed a 
man urinating on a tree in the park, the police did not do anything. He also has notice that people are 
playing frisbee golf in the park past 10pm. Commissioner Taylor asked Alderman Richard Leja if the 
police department could share reports with the park district. Director Fallon has reached out to the 
social worker at the police department regarding the homeless people but has not received a response. 
Commissioner Espinoza said the Berwyn Public Library underwent training for dealing with situations 
concerning homeless people. Alderman Leja said the police department has two social workers on staff. 
One during the day and one at night. Sabine Krauss congratulated the newly elected commissioners and 
thanked the resigning commissioners. Commissioner Kostelny thanked the audience for coming and 
bringing their concerns. Commissioner Taylor would like to see an update to the general use policy.  
 
Correspondence: none. 
 
Financial Report: A motion made by Taylor, seconded by Espinoza, to approve May’s payables in the 
amount of $91,513.89 and April’s payroll $81,870.84 for a total of $173,384.73. Roll call: Clark- aye, 



Espinoza- aye, King-aye, Kostelny-aye, and Taylor- aye. Motion carried.  The Schedule of Investments 
Report was reviewed. A CD is maturing on 5/27/2025. This amount will not be invested into another CD 
due to the recent news that Cook County will be late distributing tax bills to homeowners. The length of 
the delay has not been stated.   
  
Agency Report: The report is in the packet. Brewfest tickets will go on sale starting June 1st. The park 
district has received a DCEO reimbursement grant in the amount of $162,222.84. A summer scavenger 
hunt will start May 30 and run through the middle of August. Each week new clues will be released. 
Participants will receive stickers for correct submissions and a chance to win other prizes.  
  
West Suburban Special Recreation Association (WSSRA): draft minutes of the May meeting are 
included in the packet. 

Proksa Park Redevelopment: the kickoff meeting with Hitchcock Design for the Proksa Park 
redevelopment was May 16th. Hitchcock has released a RFP for topographical services and a RFP for 
geotechnical services for Proksa Park. 

Unfinished Business: A motion was made by King, seconded by Clarke to approve the bylaws for the 
Berwyn Park Foundation. Roll call: Clark- aye, Espinoza- aye, King-aye, Kostelny-aye, and Taylor- aye. 
Motion carried. A motion was made by Taylor, seconded by Clark to approve Resolution No. 2025-0520 
Authorizing Release of Certain Closed Session Minutes. Roll call: Clark- aye, Espinoza- aye, King-aye, 
Kostelny-aye, and Taylor- aye. Motion carried.   
 
New Business: A motion was made by Taylor, seconded by Espinoza to approve the change order 
number 001, Berwyn Park District Mowing Services with Langton Group. This will add Liberty Cultural 
Center, Liberty Lot, Karasek Park and Karban Park for an additional cost of $4800. Roll call: Clark- aye, 
Espinoza- aye, King-aye, Kostelny-aye, and Taylor- aye. Motion carried.  Attorney Mike Roth will come to 
the June 3rd meeting to answer any questions the board has. 
 
Commissioners’ Comments: no comments 
 
Executive Session: no session 
 
Meeting Dates: June  3rd, 2025-Committee Meeting at Freedom Park Administration Building at 4:30pm. 
June 17th, 2025- Regular Board Meeting at Proksa Park Activity Center at 6pm. 
 
Adjournment: A motion made by Clark, seconded by King to adjourn at 7:03pm. Motion unanimously 
carried. 
 
Attested to by: 
 
_________________________________________ 
President: Gretchen Kostelny 
 

_________________________________________ 
Recording Secretary: Cynthia Hayes 



Committee Meeting Minutes 
Berwyn Park District 

June 3rd, 2025, at 4:30pm 

Freedom Administration Building 
 

The committee meeting of the Berwyn Park District Board of Commissioners was called to order at 4:37pm by 
President Gretchen Kostelny. 
 
Commissioners in attendance: Claire Clark, Ana Espinoza, Gretchen Kostelny, and Zachary Taylor. 
Absent: Janel King 
Staff in attendance: Cathy Fallon (Executive Director), Cindy Hayes (Superintendent of Finance and HR), Nicole 
Collier (Superintendent of Recreation), John Roberts (Superintendent of Parks, and Javier Garcia (Foreman). 
Guest: Attorney Mike Roth. 
 
Agenda: A motion made by Espinoza, seconded by Taylor to approve the amended agenda as presented. Motion 
carried.  
 
Public Comments: none 
 
Correspondence: none. 
 
Attorney Mike Roth discussed the roles of park district commissioners with the board. He discussed the protocols 
of closed session. When a board is able to go into closed session.  
 
Financial Report: a motion was made by Clark, seconded by Taylor to approve the first half of June 2025 payables 
in the amount of $37,867.12. Roll call: Clark- aye, Espinoza- aye, King-absent, Kostelny-aye, and Taylor- aye. 
Motion carried.   
Due to the election, the Berwyn Park District has had a change in board commissioners. A motion was made by 
Taylor, seconded by Espinoza  to remove Brian Brock and Mario Manfredini from all Berwyn Park District Financial 
Accounts effective immediately. Signatories of the accounts will be Gretchen Kostelny, Ana Espinoza, Zachary 
Taylor and Cynthia Hayes (Superintendent of Finance and HR and designated assistant treasurer) as per the Board 
of Commissioners Manual. Roll call: Clark- aye, Espinoza- aye, King-aye, Kostelny-aye, and Taylor- aye. Motion 
carried.   
 
Policy and Personnel: nothing to report. 
 
Recreation: report included in the packet. Director Fallon discussed the increase in registration from when the 
report was written. The marketing report is also included in the packet. 
 
Parks and Facilities: report in packet. Commissioner Taylor stated that he has noticed 6 dead trees in Proksa Park 
that need to be removed.  

Other Business: Report included in packet. The recipients of the Path grant will not be announced until around 
September. Proksa Pond update: the board would like to talk with the owner of Aquascape regarding his proposal 
of repairs needed for the ponds at the June meeting. Director Fallon will reach out to IDNR regarding what 
modifications or eliminations can be made on the ponds. The OSLAD Grant cycle opens in July. Director Fallon 
would like the district to apply for this grant, for the purpose of redoing the splash pad at Freedom Park. The board 
approves Hitchcock Designs assisting with the OSLAD grant. The commissioners asked if we are not approved of 
the grant, can the work of Hitchcock Designs be used for the next grant cycle. Director Fallon and John Roberts will 
discuss other options for the splash pad area with a representative from PDRMA on June 19th. Commissioner 
Taylor asked what the rankings of amenities in the master plan that the public would like to see the district 
consider. Director Fallon pulled the report and discussed this with the board.  



Director Fallon discussed the damage that is reoccurring in the Freedom Park bathroom and the homeless people 
residing in the Proksa Park bathrooms. Director Fallon will look into private security options. The general use policy 
is currently being updated. 

Commissioners’ Comments: Commissioner Clark stated the secretary who is retiring at Irving School, is very 
appreciative of the park district and the employees. 
 
Adjournment: A motion was made by Kostelny, seconded by Espinoza to adjourn at 7:04pm. Motion unanimously 
carried. 
 
 
Attested to by: 
 
_________________________________________ 
Vice-President: Ana Espinoza 
 

_________________________________________ 
Recording Secretary: Cynthia Hayes 









DATE: 06/12/25 
TIME: 14:28:20 
ID: AP460000 

CHECK# VENDOR 

25772 A Barr 
25773 BERSOUTH 
25774 BER-WATE 
25775 Brady 
25776 COMCAST 
25777 COMCAST2 
25778 Commeg 
25779 COSTCO 
25780 Groot 
25781 Hitchcoc 
25782 JCLICHT 
25783 Kirby 
25784 Langton 
25785 LUDY 
25786 Marlin 
25787 Mulch 
25788 NCSI 
25789 NG 
25790 ORKIN 
25791 PFM Fina 
25792 PIW 
25793 PRAIRIE 
25794 R0003684 
25795 Record 
25796 Roth 
25797 RUSSOACE 
25798 SKYZONE 
25799 Takeoff 
25800 TMobile 

NAME 

A Barr Sales Inc. 
Berwyn South 
City of Berwyn 
BradyIFS 
COMCAST BUSINESS 
COMCAST BUSINESS 
Commeg Systems, Inc. 
Citi Cards 
GROOT INDUSTRIES, iNC. 
Hitchcock Design, Inc. 
JC Licht Ace 
Kirby Built, LLC 
Langton Group 
Ludy Gerardi 
Marlin Leasing Corporation 
Mulch Magic - GT 
NCSI 
Next Generation 
Orkin 
PFM Financial Services 
Pierini Iron Works INC 

BERWYN PARK DISTRICT 
CHECK RECONCILIATION REPORT 

DATED FROM 06/04/2025 TO 06/17/2025 
ALL CHECK STATUSES 

STATUS ISSUE DATE 

OUT 06/12/25 
OUT 06/12/25 
OUT 06/12/25 
OUT 06/12/25 
OUT 06/12/25 
OUT 06/12/25 
OUT 06/12/25 
OUT 06/12/25 
OUT 06/12/25 
OUT 06/12/25 
OUT 06/12/25 
OUT 06/12/25 
OUT 06/12/25 
OUT 06/12/25 
OUT 06/12/25 
OUT 06/12/25 
OUT 06/12/25 
OUT 06/12/25 
OUT 06/12/25 
OUT 06/12/25 
OUT 06/12/25 

Prairie Lakes Community Center OUT 06/12/25 
Suzanne Poisl OUT 06/12/25 
Record-A-Hit Entertainment OUT 06/12/25 
Roth Legal LLC OUT 06/12/25 
Russo Power Equipment Inc. OUT 06/12/25 
Sky Zone OUT 06/12/25 
Eli Quintana OUT 06/12/25 
T-Mobile OUT 06/12/25 

PAGE: 1 

STATUS DATE CHECK AMT 

06/12/25 144.00 
06/12/25 1,355.01 
06/12/25 416.32 
06/12/25 1,013.73 
06/12/25 1,057.44 
06/12/25 882.85 
06/12/25 118.00 
06/12/25 116.57 
06/12/25 2,105.98 
06/12/25 3,000.00 
06/12/25 64.95 
06/12/25 2,166.08 
06/12/25 5,860.00 
06/12/25 300.00 
06/12/25 414.80 
06/12/25 1,050.00 
06/12/25 148.00 
06/12/25 136.00 
06/12/25 151.00 
06/12/25 4,886.68 
06/12/25 757.00 
06/12/25 525.00 
06/12/25 115. 00 
06/12/25 550.00 
06/12/25 960.00 
06/12/25 2,194.00 
06/12/25 892.09 
06/12/25 1,108.80 
06/12/25 265.87 

TOTAL---ALL CHECKS 32,755.17 





































































3701 S Scoville Ave. 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

708-788-1701

berwynparks.org 

DATE: 6/17/2025 
TO: The Board of Commissioners 
FROM: Cathy Fallon, Executive Director 
RE: Agency Report  

We have 14 kids signed up for Tinkergarten – Summer. 
We have 10 kids signed up for Book and Bites.  
We have 7 kids signed up for Science Sparks.  
We have 5 kids signed up for Frosting Magic.  

We have 23 kids signed up for tennis.  
We have 12 kids signed up for sand volleyball class. The class is Full. 
We have 9 kids signed up for baseball fundamentals. 

We have 8 adults signed up for Monday Mile Run Club 
We have 2 teams, and 6 free agents signed up for our Adult Soccer League. 
We have 12 signed up for Adult Pickleball. 
We have 2 signed up for the Holland River Cruise – April 2026 
We have 4 signed up for the French Riviera trip – October 2026. 

Installed alarmed covers on the fire pull stations in the Proksa and Freedom classrooms/multipurpose 
space. 
Staff attended CPR training.  
RPZ test at MRAZ park.  



3701 S Scoville Ave. 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

708-788-1701

berwynparks.org 

DATE: 6/17/2025 
TO: The Board of Commissioners 
FROM: Cathy Fallon, Executive Director 
RE: Proksa Park Redevelopment  

• There were no responses to the RFP for the topographical survey. Hitchcock has reached out
to a vendor for quotes.

• Another vendor has rejected the Proksa Pond project. I am continuing to reach out to
vendors.

• I have reached out to IDNR to inquire about what we can do in terms of repairs and
improvements to the pond.



3701 S Scoville Ave. 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

708-788-1701

berwynparks.org 

DATE: 6/17/2025 
TO: The Board of Commissioners 
FROM: Cathy Fallon, Executive Director 
RE: Old Business  

• Safety/Security Improvements
o The Park District has purchased a training program on working and responding to

homeless individuals. The safety committee is working on creating a training plan to
implement the program.

o On the outside of the Proksa Park building we will replace all outlet covers with
blank faceplates. This option will provide no access for chargers, and hopefully
provide less damage than covers being broken.

o I have inquired into a few private security companies about services in the park. I
have included one quote I’ve received for private security services.

• Portable Restrooms
o I have reached out to the Park District of Oak Park about the outdoor bathrooms at

Rheem. The company is called Portland Loo. I have requested a quote as an option.
o I have included the price breakdown of the portable restroom option for all the

parks.

  Proksa Freedom  Sunshine Smirz Damage 
Waiver 

Monthly 
Total 

Delivery 
Fee 

ProWaste 
Incorporated 
(PWI) 

$510.00 $260.00 $135.00 $135.00 $35.00(x4) 
$40.00(x4) 

$1340 $60.00 
(x4) 

Countrywide 
Rental 

$1445.00 $715.00 $350.00 $350.00 $10.00 (8) $2940 $0 

ZTERS $1100.00 $560.00 $290.00 $290.00 $9.00(x8) $2312 $100.00 
(x6) 

• Freedom OSLAD
o Hitchcock responded to the Board members question regarding reapplication. In the

event the Park District is not awarded an OSLAD for Freedom splash pad in the 2025
application process, and moved forward with a 2026 application yes, the fee would be
reduced.



From: Anthony Pasteris <apasteris@bluestarsecurityllc.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, June 11, 2025 10:29 AM 
To: Cathy Fallon <cfallon@berwynparks.org> 
Subject: Blue Star Security - Quote for Service  

Good morning Cathy, 
         It was a pleasure speaking with you yesterday. As discussed, Blue Star Security can provide 

Armed Off Duty Law Enforcement Officers, either active or retired, for both of the park locations.  

We have a 6-hour minimum shift requirement, but shifts can be 8 or 12 hours if needed. We can 
discuss shift hours at a later date.  

I was able to discuss this coverage with our team: 
         For Proksa Park, we would be able to provide 1 officer to assist with the homeless 

individuals at this location. 

         For Freedom Park, we would be able to provide a team of 2 to assist with the vandalism at 
this location. Because we are not clear on what kind of crowd is doing the damage, we would need 
to have 2 officers on site for safety. 

The rate for service would be $75 per hour per officer.  

We did not discuss this, but if a vehicle is needed, there would be additional charges applied. 

Please let me know if you have any questions or need anything additional. 

Thank you. 

Regards, 

Anthony Pasteris 
Manager, Operations 
 

6400 Shafer Court, Suite 200, Rosemont, IL 60018-4914 
 

O: (708)669-7470  |  M: (312)771-5326 
 

apasteris@bluestarsecurityllc.com 

www.bluestarsecurityllc.com
 

mailto:apasteris@bluestarsecurityllc.com
mailto:cfallon@berwynparks.org
tel:(708)669-7470
mailto:apasteris@bluestarsecurityllc.com
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fbluestarsecurityllc.com%2f&c=E,1,B6PRgY6VySxie191gHJEVxn6Ya6_cwQLzF4sjyfJJ33fk7uGKvRsMGUE6sN9Sgtvldqj8WgbhVuSWBaMfXV-NaBzt24IQIfmcTf9s6pz8iI,&typo=1

	board meeting 6-17-25 agenda
	May 20 2025 minutes
	June 3 2025 committee minutes
	SKM_C361i25061215280.pdf
	Agency Report 6-17-25
	Proksa Park Redevelopment 6-17-25
	Old Business 6-17-25
	email-security.pdf
	From: Anthony Pasteris <apasteris@bluestarsecurityllc.com>  Sent: Wednesday, June 11, 2025 10:29 AM To: Cathy Fallon <cfallon@berwynparks.org> Subject: Blue Star Security - Quote for Service


